
CITY OF OVERBROOK

MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT;

MINUTES

MARCH 11, 1992

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

J.A.Cordts. Mark Criger. Dale Fox, Car61yn Meerian,
Dennis Graves

Mike Musick. Matt Prim. Bob Greenfield, Greenfield"
Davidson. CPA, Jim Long. Bogner & Button, CPA. '
Tom Singleton, Scherer. Harrod & Bennet CPA,
Kenneth and Joe Green. Osage Waste. Inc., Cheryl
Brown, Max Friesen, Ron Dean, and Scott Thompson,
Citizens Insutance Service.

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 PM by Mayor Richard
Hamit. The Asst. Clerk called the roll. There was a quorum
present.

tlINUTE;>/Wf\BHANIS:"The minutes._of the February 12, 1992 regular
meeti ng were reviewed. C_£IQJ,y-n".11~~T.t9.J:L-'!I~1-~§._mQj:.iQ~.ecoll~t~.db~
t'lg r lL~.IJ.9~r.."1:.9.".~pprO\Lt3 _.:t:.be..ulfL~f1I,Jt?;?""a.~..~Lttte.I}.,"I'1Q.t!Q D_9 ..;1r ri.§lg",,"
Warrants No. 7542 thru 7586 were presented for payment. Q.~nDi~
~r t3..\1~.9_m~9.~..~ ""mQ.t..i-.9JL_§.?~ QJ}c:t?Q...P.l:: J1e.,I1<.c;I..!E.~L...t~L 9PELQve a 1 L_w~r:r..9.nt §--".

MQt.t9D_, C.9 r r .t?Q-,,-

~QJ",IQ...L>l.Ij~IJ;.. ~QI\:!TBf'!c;T.;.Kenneth and Joe Greene, Osage Waste, Inc.
were present to request the council approve their contract for
another year. Greene noted he had not raised fees for approximately
three years and he had no intention of raising them this year unless
the Osage Land Fill raised their fee. He said if it raised he would
have to'come back to the council and request a raise to cover the
extra expense. He said at this time it did not look as if the county
would raise the fee any time in the near future. The subject was
discussed at length. Several members commended Green for a job well
done. MaLk.c;ri9.~T..fll.<3..g?~.JIlQtiQn.•.....§?~Qnd?(:LJ;~x....P<3.Je.EO?L.t.Q_apPIQY?_..t.h~
[§!.ne..!:'l91_...9.L.t.ht3 .. ?.QJid .. wCl.~.tQ.c;QJTt:.Lac.t ..f9T ...9D.8..rnQ.L?...Y§!{3r ,_. __.tlot.!QIl
9~!T.!e<i, .Dale Fox brought up the subject of recycli ng. It ~"'asnoted
that it had been tried in Overbrook in the past and it didn't work.
Greene said the land fill in Osage County was good for around three
more years and then they would just open up another section. He also
noted the county had leased around 180 acres also.

AUQII.J:tIDS.;._."MayorHami t opened the sealed bids for the city's
annual audit. They were as follows:

Scherer, Harrod & Bennet - Lawrence
Greenfield & Davidson - Ottawa
Bogner & Button - Lawrence

$4200
4950
3600



MINUTES - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - MARCH 11, 1992 - PAGE 2

All audit firms agreed they would have the audit finished and the
report back to the City by June 30. During the discussion, it was
noted basically everyone does the audit the same, they are all
governed by generally accepted audit standards and the Kansas Mini­
mum Standard Audit Program. Greenfield noted he felt the other
audit firms would need to be trained and that his company was al­
ready familiar with Overbrook's books. Mr. Singleton noted his
company has experience in the audits of cities plus his firm had
audited the City of Overbrook from 1982 thru 1987. Mr. Long also
said his firm has audited many municipalities and also does the
audit for Santa Fe Trail USD 434. ~~DDi~L~L~y:e.?_ma~:L~_._<!.__mot.io.ll----,-t.hgJ;,.
'the__~9u ncil~Er.g.y_~ __tJJ~LtLig_frgm Bog n~~.~YJ:,t.Qn2-1Q~~§.!:.-__QiddeL
!'1p_rt Criger:_secQ!l_g~g__the l!l9Jj:2Jl-"-__MotiQ!l.J:~£trLi~!;LDale Fox and
J.A. Cordts registered their displeasure with the audit not being
given to a local person. Mark Criger noted that Greenfield's office
is not in Overbrook. It was also noted that Greenfield has opened
another office in Olathe. Criger said he did not consider the bus­
iness as local in these instances. He also noted that the council
can only go so far when you are dealing with local people, and that
a $1350 spread was too much to explain to the tax payers.

INSURANCE BIDS: J.A.Cordts excused himself while the council
reviewed the insurance bids. Mayor Hamit opened the bid from
Community Insurance Service - general liability $3161, public
officials errors and omissions liability $1954 and Law Enforcement
Liability $2.082 for a total of $7197. He then opened the bid from
Citizens Insurance Services (the company that purchased Friesen,
Wilhite Insurance) for various city buildings, in the amount of $619
It was noted the bids were not for the same insurance coverage.
(clerks note; the bid requested was for city buildings only, inasmuch
as the insurance carrier had changed) The council decided to go
ahead and honor both bids since the insurance premium date would be
due before the next council meeting. Q§J._~__.EQx..JI!§.g~LJLl!lQt15;m~
secg ng~.g_py_j~aLO lYJLl1eerL~ILto_.?.J;CS3.E1..J29tJLJ;)j,ds-,,__J19J;·.t9.H._..£?.Lrie<;L.
Scott Thompson, Citizens Insurance suggested compiling all the city's
insurance to come due at one time. He said his carrier, Employers
Mutual had a municipal package that would all come due April 1, and
that they had 90% of the cities in Kansas. He said they could start
working on it around the first of next year. In reference to the
liability insurance. Mark Criger questioned the coverage for
Emergency Medical Technicians. Max Friesen said the EMT's are
covered through the policy with the Osage County Fire Dist#4.
(cler.ks·sflote: :t-hetMT'swho ar-e-emp-loye&s.of the city do not
work as EMT's for the city, they automatically are volunteer firemen)
In reference to the insurance that Citizens Ins. Svc. bid on. Max
Friesen noted that his agency used Hartford but Citizens did not.
He also noted the policies his agency had that had been transferred
to Citizens were buildings and fire policies. pumps and water
towers. and employees bond. He said the policies the Cordts/Hylton
Agency, now Community Ins. hold are liability, auto. workman's compo
tractor and backhoe. He said they always been separate.



MINUTES - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING ~CH 11, 1992 - PAGE 3
£\JiI"!EXATIQtti Mi ke Musick and ~ Prim were present to dis-

cuss the possible annexation of a piece of property south of the
city limits between NAPA and the American Legion. They said at this
time they would like to put in a car wash. The were concerned about
being able to obtain sewer and water. The council agreed all they
had to do was present the city with a letter requesting annexation
and also give the city a legal description. Musick also wanted to
know if the water line crossing the property to the American Legion
Hall could be moved, to the edge of the property. The council said
it was a private water line and Musick would have to discuss it with
the Legion. Musick also asked about zoning. It was agreed that in­
asmuch as the area was zoned business, that the new property would
also be zoned busi ness . n1ec::gllIl~!L#_9T~i3_(tJ2~_9Qn<:::;~n§l,1§._.tbAJ:,_~.n1}§.x=__
?tiC)n wou 1d.P§.._(,·:t?§j.T?pl~?!l~:tthey..w9lJlg.j,,,§1<:;()!T!~1h§_JJ.§_w_.J.?J,lSi!1~§§_-.._
Musick was instructed to get together with the clerk to make sure
everything was done right. They were thanked for coming and left
the meeting.

PO~ICE 8J~_PQRT~_._.RonDean requested_no parking signs in specific
areas arouo~:;L>..th~ .9Lad~.,~h2Ql and QQss:iJ~)l~.~t the middle school, to
accommodate the school bus traffic. He said not too long ago there
was a bus/car accident because there were vehicles blocking their
view. Dean presented pictures to the council showing the problem
There was some discussion in relation to whether the no-parking
should be all day during school hours or just at specific times.
The council agreed the parking should be restricted from 7:45 am to
3: 30 pm on school days. After more discussion, R_?Jlni~L~r~\L§.~LJ!lad~
~ moti01}-.tQ.._i1].§1~11_:tb~§i9!l?_C!§m..r~!d.ested J2y_-.th~._po1ice _c::_hi~f_._D~ 1e
f="Q>L.§~C9 nd~ct-, ..MQ!'J,g IL_.C?rLL~g_,,-

Dean requested permission to purchase a 22 rifle. He said he
did not have one right now and inasmuch as he has had to destroy so
many coons, skunks and possums he really needs one. He said he had
found one for $50. IlJ~_9Q~.m~JJ..9J.:1L~~9-J2~cODse!l§Jd.§_thaj:..-.J,t,woqlg
9Q-'n§_.Q~!,_.0t.__tb~_J,?_~_f.!JTt9_ c:lJl~LJAJj.tJr .J;:.h~__L?Qj,§$._Pr.QQJ~l1l __.~_D~~LD.9...Yi!!.9..... tQ.
Q§st roy so manI_C!2p.?I.§ILt...I ab_t9...~!l.imA.!.?..•._it.--1'J..Qu1.fLj~~_G!.-9.90didea.

J.A. Cordts requested Dean to install a new yield sign on the
west side of the grade school. He said it was all faded out. Dean
said he would take care of it.

Mayor Hamit commended Dean for his quick response to the
accident at the corner of Fourth and Oak.

~kJIt1J1m§._ e9Q1" Et1P_LQYE:E:$_~Mayor Hami t reported an ad had been
placed in the local paper for a Hanaser/supervisor for the pool. It
was noted as stated at the February meeting it was important to have
an adult at the pool. There was a lengthy discussion concerning
duties and pay. It was decided since the clerk could not be here
tonight it might be advisable to call a special meeting to discuss
the details. It was agreed to do away with the "basket-person-.



MINUTES - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - MARCH 11, 1992 - PAGE 4

Mayor Hamit asked Mark Criger if he would agree to be the liaison
between the pool employees and the city inasmuch as he has had ex­
perience in managing a pool. It was also agreed that Mayor Hamit,
Mark Criger and Carolyn Meerian would do the interviews.

~£I!;R_EB_QMPA8TY_.QO"'!tlIJ.of'.!;_MayorHami t read a donation request
from Santa Fe Trail High School/After Prom Committee. It was noted
that the city had \listoricall y donated $100. Q_ql~L£Q~__ma_g~La---IDotioTl..t.
~~£9-Dd~~LQY.t1~LIs__~.rL9_?J:-j:9. c!9ILaj;.?...:!> lQ.Q _t,Q.1J:lE3..l-U.9J:L.?Q bgQl_utl.f.t~L._.PT.Qm
P ar..th-----'1.Q...t i_QJl__QAIL i_~<:L.

WATER _BE~Q.RT.:_.. _.InBruce Smith's absence Mayor Hami t brought the
council up to date in reference to some of the details in reference
to rusty water etc. He reportetl well #4 was not being used at this
time since it appears to be the rust culprit. Smith left a letter
to the council reviewing the problem and hopeful solutions. He said
the State's options for the city were - pig out the water lines
(apparently Bruce did not feel the lines were sufficiently plugged
to be a problem); use wells 3 and 4 as little as possible and the
RWD as much as possible. Smith noted the problem with that is the
only time we get complaints about the foul smell in the water is when
we use the RWD. He noted we could add chemical to #4 but the guide­
lines for building in Douglas County are so stringent that we really
don't have room to put a building up. Dale Fox said he was against
adding chemical if there was any other way. He suggested until we
can find a permanent solution, regular flushing would be in order.

SWIMM_ING_eQ.9L.REf:lA~NII.I':!~~.Smith's note also discussed the fact
that a decision has to be made soon in reference to repainting the
swimming pool. He wanted to know if the council wanted him to do it
or hire it done again. He noted if the city did it themselves. it
would cost around $2.000 for apoxy and $3000 for rubber (if rubber is
used - it would have to be sand blasted) The matter was tabled until
the special meeting when Smith would be available to talk about it
and would have some more prices.

~AU;BJ2.EEL_?!JMM~RJj~L"P: Smith wanted to know if the city
wanted to hire another summer helper this summer. He noted last
year the person was hired to basically do mowing. One council
member said he thought the person was hired to help clean out
drainage ditches. Another member thought he was supposed to install
valve extensions but as yet they are not done. Someone questioned if
the employee worked full time. Mayor Hamit said he was supposed to
work 40 hrs per week. (clerk's note; the employee had several prior
plans where he was gone from Overbrook for several weeks and also had
a several week bout with the flu. He did not work 40 hours any given
week.) It was suggested that Smith present a list of items he would
like a temporary employee to accomplish. The subject was tabled to
the April meeting when Smith would be available to answer questions.



MINUTES - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING - MARCH 11, 1992 - PAGE 5

FIREWOR~S~ Dale Fox reported he would be meeting with the
fire department next week to go over some fund raisers for the
pending fireworks display. He said he hoped they could earn
enough money to make sure the celebration would be bigger and
better. He said he would report to the findings to the council.

A-DJOURNtl.I;;NIL-._pal'2_L9.~_.!T!§,.Q~_IllQtj,QJl.seconded b~Mar k Cr iger
tg adjourn the ..m.eeting_.tlQt!..9..D__carried. The meeting was adjourned
§.J:.__J0 : 00 PM_

Respectfully submitted;

Mildred J. Cannon, City Clerk

Cheryl'L. Brown. Asst. Clerk

APPROVED: .__

Cheryl
TextBox
April 8, 1992 


